### HEALTH AND PARTNERSHIPS SCRUTINY COMMITTEE

Wednesday, 3 July 2019

**PRESENT** – Councillors Bell (Chair), Clarke, Donoghue, B Jones, Mrs D Jones, Layton, McEwan, Newall and K Nicholson

**APOLOGIES** – Councillor Heslop

**ALSO IN ATTENDANCE** – Jill Foggin (Communications Officer, County Durham and Darlington Foundation Trust)

**OFFICERS IN ATTENDANCE** – Ian Thompson (Assistant Director Community Services), Ken Ross (Public Health Principal) and Hannah Fay (Democratic Officer)

# HP1 APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR FOR THE MUNICIPAL YEAR 2019/20

**RESOLVED** – That Councillor Bell be appointed Chair of this Committee for the Municipal Year 2019/20.

# HP2 APPOINTMENT OF VICE CHAIR FOR THE MUNICIPAL YEAR 2019/20

**RESOLVED** – That Councillor Clarke be appointed Vice Chair of this Committee for the Municipal Year 2019/20.

### HP3 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillor McEwan declared an interest in Minute HP6/Jul/19 below as the Strategic Council Advisor for All Party Parliamentary Group (APPG) on Obesity. There were no other declarations of interest reported at the meeting.

#### HP4 TO CONSIDER TIMES OF MEETINGS OF THIS COMMITTEE FOR THE MUNICIPAL YEAR 2019/20, ON THE DATES AS AGREED IN THE CALENDAR OF MEETINGS BY CABINET AT MINUTE C110/FEB/19

**RESOLVED** – That meetings of this Scrutiny Committee be held at 9.30am for the remainder of the 2019/20 Municipal Year and that the meetings be held on a Thursday, on dates to be agreed with the Chair.

# HP5 TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THIS SCRUTINY COMMITTEE HELD ON:-

### (1) 13 MARCH 2019

Submitted – The Minutes (previously circulated) of the meeting of this Scrutiny Committee held on 13 March 2019.

**RESOLVED** – That the Minutes of the meeting of this Scrutiny Committee held on 13 March 2019 be approved as a correct record.

### (2) 1 MAY 2019

Submitted – The Minutes (previously circulated) of the meeting of this Scrutiny Committee held on 1 May 2019.

**RESOLVED** – That the Minutes of the meeting of this Scrutiny Committee held on 1 May 2019 be approved as a correct record.

#### HP6 PERFORMANCE INDICATORS QUARTER 4 2018/19

The Head of Strategy, Performance and Communications submitted a report (previously circulated) providing Members with an update on performance against those key performance indicators within the remit of this Scrutiny Committee for the period 2018/19.

It was reported that the indicators were aligned with key priorities and the majority used to monitor the Corporate Plan 2017/21.

Details were provided of the 30 indicators that were reported to this Scrutiny Committee, five Culture indicators and 25 Public Health indicators. The majority of the indicators were reported annually and all Public Health Indicators were reported in line with the Public Health Framework National reporting schedule which means that the data is at least one year in arrears or related to aggregate periods.

At Quarter 4 data was available for five Culture indicators and five Public Health indicators had updated information to report.

Particular reference was made to the indicators CUL 008a – per cent of the adult population physically inactive, CUL 009a – per cent of the population physically active and CUL010a – per cent of the population taking part in sport and physical activity at least twice in the last month, which measured the activity of adult population in Darlington and were based on a Sport England Survey and showed that performance was on a par with the North East. It was also stated that CUL 063 – number of school pupils participating in the sports development programme had shown a significant increase in performance as a result of strong partnership working between the Council and schools; and that the performance indicator CUL 064 – number of individuals participating in the community sports development programme showed a reduction in performance as a result of a reduced funding.

The Public Health Principal advised Members that in relation to PBH020 – excess weight among primary school age children in Reception Year and PBH021 – excess weigh among primary school age children in Year 6 had both seen an improvement in performance and that Darlington was statistically similar to the national average.

Reference was made to the indicators relating to hospital admissions for unintentional and deliberate injuries to children and Members questioned the methodology to capture non accidental injuries. Members were assured that non accidental injuries were captured, that the figure was very low and that this was reported to and monitored by Children's Services.

Discussion ensued on the figures for smoking in Darlington, which has seen the

biggest proportional reduction in smokers but that the figure for Darlington was still higher than the national average and that the number of adults identified as smoking in the antenatal period had seen a reduction; and the use of e-cigarettes as a replacement to cigarettes.

The Public Health Principal advised Members of the smoking cessation services and initiatives available and the Healthwatch representative confirmed that a survey had been undertaken by Youthwatch Darlington in respect of the support available to young people in Darlington to stop smoking. Reference was also made to the substance misuse service available to residents in Darlington and the representative from Healthwatch confirmed that the Healthwatch report on substance misuse and mental health would be circulated to Members for information.

Members questioned the methodology used to measure admissions for alcohol and whether there was another indicator that was specific to alcohol related attendances at Accident and Emergency.

**RESOLVED** – (a) That the submitted report be noted.

(b) That an update be provided in respect of an additional indicator specific to alcohol related attendances at Accident and Emergency.

# HP7 WORK PROGRAMME

The Managing Director submitted a report (previously circulated) requesting that consideration be given to this Scrutiny Committee's work programme for the Municipal Year 2019/2020 and to consider any additional areas to be included.

There was discussion on the current status of the various topics on the work programme and Members requested an update on Childhood Healthy Weight Plan and an update from Adults and Housing Scrutiny Committee on the outstanding item on Domiciliary Care.

It was suggested that the Scrutiny Committee could look at an item on partnership working with community charities. The representative from Healthwatch Darlington advised Members of Darlington Organisations Together network (DOT), a group of organisations, community groups and services, and agreed to share dates of future DOT meetings with Members.

Members raised concern in respect of the proposal to merge the CCG's in Tees Valley and Durham and requested an update as part of NHS Clinical Commissioning Group Financial Challenges and Impact on Services. The representative from Healthwatch Darlington advised that Healthwatch were developing a survey in respect of the proposals for new CCG's in Tees Valley and Durham and this would be circulated to Members once finalised.

RESOVED - (a) That the work programme for the Municipal Year 2019/20, as appended to the submitted report, be approved.

(b) That the work programme be updated to reflect the decisions of this Scrutiny Committee.

## HP8 HEALTH AND WELL BEING BOARD

Members were advised that the next meeting of the Health and Well Being Board was scheduled for 4 July 2019.

**RESOLVED** – That Members look forward to receiving an update on the work of the Health and Well Being Board at a future meeting of this Scrutiny Committee.